

Clacton County High School

Walton Road, Clacton-on-Sea, Essex. CO15 6DZ Tel: 01255 424266 e-mail: admin@cchs.school

Higher Expectations, Raising Aspirations, Transforming Lives

RSHE POLICY

2023-24

Policy reviewed and adopted	Autumn 2023
Next review date	Summer 2024

Contents:

Statement of intent

- 1. Legal Framework
- 2. Roles and responsibilities
- 3. Organisation of the RSHE curriculum
- 4. <u>RSHE subject overview</u>
- 5. Inclusivity
- 6. Delivery of the curriculum
- 7. <u>Use of resources</u>
- 8. Use of external organisation and materials
- 9. Curriculum links
- 10. Parents' right to withdraw from lessons
- 11. Equality and accessibility
- 12. Safeguarding and confidentiality
- 13. Assessment
- 14. Staff training
- 15. Monitoring and review

Executive Headteacher: Neil Gallagher Head of School: Chris Taylor



Relationships, Sex and Health Education (RSHE)

Statement of intent

CCHS Mission

To deliver a first-class education, in a happy, safe and secure environment.

Clacton County High School is committed to facilitating excellent teaching and learning through three simple rules: **Ready. Respectful. Safe.** These simple rules permeate across all aspects of our behaviour and academic curriculum and lie at the heart of our approach to the teaching and delivery of our Relationships, Sex and Health Education (RSHE) curriculum. RSHE is an integral part of the curriculum at Clacton County High School and is specifically designed to educate our students about relationships, sex and health.

Our approach goes beyond providing biological information but also focuses on developing skills to understand, manage and maintain healthy, positive relationships. We aim to give students the knowledge to make appropriate and well-informed decisions. Through our teaching about respectful relationships, kindness and understanding, the value of acceptance of others is central, regardless of differences in belief, culture or race. We encompass the notion that 'mutual respect does not mean having to agree with someone'.

RSHE encourages students to consider their physical, moral and emotional development as they progress through different stages of their lives. It is about developing positive beliefs, values and attitudes and understanding the importance of healthy relationships (including friendships), gender issues, conception and birth processes, contraception, sexually transmitted infections, prejudice and stereotyping in a safe and secure environment.

Teachers will ensure that their personal beliefs and attitudes do not influence their teaching of RSHE. They will provide balanced, factual and unbiased information about relationships, reproduction and wider contexts including emotional, ethical, religious, and moral dimensions for a range of topics.

Through our curriculum delivery we encourage students and teachers to share and value each other's views. Teachers generate an atmosphere where questions and discussion on sexual matters can take place without any stigma or embarrassment, correcting any misinformation students may have gained. We are aware of different approaches to sexual orientation, without promotion of any particular family structure. **It is not about the promotion of sexual orientation or sexual activity.**

Our RSHE curriculum aims to equip young people with essential skills for building positive, enjoyable, respectful and non-exploitative relationships and staying safe both on and offline. It involves acquiring

information on what the law says in regards to relationships and sexual activity, and free speech whilst respecting the views of others.

1. Legal framework

As a secondary academy, we must provide RSE to all pupils under section 34 of the <u>Children and Social</u> <u>Work Act 2017</u>.

In teaching RSE, we're required by our funding agreements to have regard to <u>guidance</u> issued by the secretary of state, as outlined in section 403 of the <u>Education Act 1996</u>.

We also have regard to legal duties set out in:

- Sections 406 and 407 of the Education Act 1996
- Part 6, chapter 1 of the Equality Act 2010

 $\cdot\,$ The Public Sector Equality Duty (as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010). This duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities

This policy has due regard to all relevant legislation and statutory guidance including, but not limited to, the following:

- Equality Act 2010
- The Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education and Health Education (England) Regulations 2019
- Children and Social Work Act 2017
- DfE (2023) 'Keeping children safe in education' (KCSIE)
- DfE (2023) 'Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education'
- DfE (2021) 'Teaching about relationships, sex and health'
- DfE (2015) 'National curriculum in England: science programmes of study'

This policy operates in conjunction with the following school policies:

- Behaviour Policy
- PSHE Policy
- SEND Policy
- E-Safety Policy
- Student Equality Policy
- Staff Equality, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
- Anti-bullying Policy
- Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy
- Child-on-Child Abuse Policy
- Acceptable Internet Use Terms of Use Agreement

2. Roles and responsibilities

The local governance committee is responsible for:

• Ensuring all students make progress in achieving the expected educational outcomes.

- Ensuring the RSHE curriculum is well-led, effectively managed and well-planned.
- Evaluating the quality of provision through regular and effective self-evaluation.
- Ensuring that teaching is delivered in ways that are accessible to all students with SEND.
- Providing clear information to parents on the subject content and the right to request that their child is withdrawn.
- Ensuring RSHE is resourced, staffed and timetabled in a way that ensures the school can fulfil its legal obligations.

The headteacher is responsible for:

- The overall implementation of this policy.
- Ensuring all staff are suitably trained to deliver the subjects.
- Ensuring parents are fully informed of this policy.
- Reviewing all requests to withdraw students from non-statutory elements of the RSHE curriculum.
- Discussing withdrawal requests with parents, and the student if appropriate, to ensure their wishes are understood and to clarify the nature and purpose of the curriculum, including the benefits of receiving the education.
- Ensuring withdrawn students receive appropriate, purposeful education during the period of withdrawal.
- Encouraging parents to be involved in consultations regarding reviews of the school's RSHE curriculum.
- Reviewing this policy on an annual basis.
- Reporting to the local governance committee on the effectiveness of this policy and the curriculum.

The RSHE and PSHE subject leader is responsible for:

- Overseeing the delivery of RSHE.
- Working closely with colleagues in related curriculum areas to ensure the RSHE curriculum compliments, and does not duplicate, the content covered in other curriculum subjects.
- Ensuring the curriculum is age-appropriate and of high quality.
- Reviewing changes to the RSHE curriculum and advising on their implementation.
- Monitoring the learning and teaching of RSHE, providing support to staff where necessary.
- Ensuring the continuity and progression between each year group.
- Helping to develop colleagues' expertise in the subject.
- Ensuring teachers are provided with adequate resources to support teaching of the curriculum.
- Ensuring the school meets its statutory requirements in relation to RSHE.
- Leading staff meetings and ensuring all members of staff involved in the curriculum have received the appropriate training.
- Organising, providing and monitoring CPD opportunities in the subject.
- Ensuring the correct standards are met for recording and assessing student performance.
- Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the subjects and providing reports to the headteacher.

The DSL is responsible for:

- Offering advice and consultation for safeguarding-related subjects in the RSHE curriculum.
- Promoting knowledge and awareness of safeguarding issues amongst staff.
- Being an appropriate point of contact for staff who have concerns about the welfare of a student that have arisen through the teaching of RSHE.

Subject teachers are responsible for:

- Acting in accordance with, and promoting, this policy.
- Delivering RSHE in a manner that is sensitive, of high quality and appropriate for each year group.
- Ensuring they do not express personal views or beliefs when delivering the curriculum.
- Planning lessons effectively, ensuring a range of appropriate teaching methods and resources are used to cover the content.
- Modelling positive attitudes to RSHE.
- Liaising with the SENDCo to identify and respond to individual needs of students with SEND.
- Liaising with the RSHE subject leader on key topics, resources and support for individual students.
- Monitoring student progress in RSHE.
- Reporting any concerns regarding the teaching of RSHE to the RSHE subject leader or a member of the SLT.
- Reporting any safeguarding concerns or disclosures that students may make as a result of the subject content to the DSL.
- Responding appropriately to students whose parents have requested to withdraw them from the non-statutory components of RSHE, by providing them with alternative education opportunities.
- Staff do not have the right to opt out of teaching RSHE. Staff who have concerns about teaching RSE are encouraged to discuss this with the headteacher.

Pupils:

Pupils are expected to engage fully in RSHE and, when discussing issues related to RSHE, treat others with respect and sensitivity.

3. Organisation of the RSHE curriculum

"**RSHE**" is used to refer to the overall programme of relationships, sex and health education.

- "RSE" refers to relationships and sex education and is defined as teaching students about developing healthy, nurturing relationships of all kinds, and helping them to understand human sexuality and to respect themselves and others.
- "Health education" is defined as teaching students about how they can make good decisions about their own health and wellbeing, and how physical health and mental wellbeing are interlinked.

Our RSHE curriculum is set out as per our RSHE Curriculum Map 2023-2024, but we may need to adapt it as and when necessary.

We have developed the curriculum in consultation with parents, pupils and staff, and taking into account the age, developmental stage, needs and feelings of our pupils. If pupils ask questions outside the scope of this policy, teachers will respond in an appropriate manner so that pupils are fully informed and don't seek answers online.

We will gather the views of stakeholders in the following ways:

- Questionnaires
- Meetings
- Letters
- Training sessions

The RSHE curriculum is delivered through RSHE specialist teachers via a floating timetabled lesson. Each year group will follow a bespoke RSHE programme of study and will receive a minimum of three RSHE specific lessons each academic year. In addition, assemblies, form tutors and external speakers support this programme of study. The RSHE subject leader will work closely with their colleagues in related curriculum areas to ensure the curriculum complements and does not duplicate the content covered in national curriculum subjects.

The school will ensure that the curriculum remains in line with the DfE's guidance at all times.

The school will consider the context and views of the wider local community when developing the curriculum to ensure it is reflective of circumstances in the local area. The religious background of all students will also be considered when planning teaching, to ensure all topics included are appropriately handled.

The RSHE curriculum will be informed by topical issues in the school and wider community, to ensure it is tailored to students' needs, e.g. if there was a local prevalence of specific sexually transmitted infections, our curriculum would be tailored to address this issue.

4. RSHE subject overview

RSHE focuses on giving young people the information they need to help them develop healthy, nurturing relationships of all kinds including:

- Families
- Respectful relationships, including friendships
- Online and media
- Being safe
- Intimate and sexual relationships, including sexual health

For more information about our RSHE curriculum, see our <u>RSHE Curriculum Map 2023-2024</u>.

These areas of learning are taught within the context of family life, taking care to make sure that there is no stigmatisation of children based on their home circumstances (families can include single parent families, LGBT+ parents, families headed by grandparents, adoptive parents and foster

parents/carers, amongst other structures), along with reflecting sensitively that some children may have a different structure of support around them (for example, looked-after children or young carers).

We will also be mindful of the law and legal requirements, taking care not to condone or encourage illegal political activity, such as violent action against people, criminal damage to property, hate crime, terrorism or the illegal use of drugs.

5. Inclusivity

We will teach about these topics in a manner that: Considers how a diverse range of pupils will relate to them Is sensitive to all pupils' experiences

During lessons, makes pupils feel:

o Safe and supported

o Able to engage with the key messages

We will also:

Make sure that pupils learn about these topics in an environment that's appropriate for them, for example in:

- o A whole-class setting
- o Small groups or targeted sessions
- o 1-to-1 discussions
- o Digital formats

Give careful consideration to the level of differentiation needed.

6. Delivery of the curriculum

Through effective organisation and delivery of the RSHE, we will ensure that:

- Core knowledge is sectioned into units of a manageable size.
- The required content is communicated to students clearly, in a carefully sequenced way, within a planned scheme of work.
- Teaching includes sufficient and well-chosen opportunities and contexts for students to embed new knowledge so that it can be used confidently in real-life situations.

RSHE complements several other curriculum subjects. Where appropriate, the school will look for opportunities to make links between the subjects and integrate teaching.

The RSHE curriculum will be delivered by appropriately trained members of staff.

The curriculum will proactively address issues in a timely way in line with current evidence on student's physical, emotional and sexual development. RSHE will be delivered in a non-judgemental, age-appropriate, factual and inclusive way that allows students to ask questions in a safe environment.

Teaching of the curriculum reflects requirements set out in law, particularly in the Equality Act 2010, so that students understand what the law does and does not allow, and the wider legal implications of the decisions they make.

7. Use of resources

We will consider whether any resources we plan to use:

- Are aligned with the teaching requirements set out in the statutory RSE guidance
- Would support pupils in applying their knowledge in different contexts and settings
- Are age-appropriate, given the age, developmental stage and background of our pupils
- Are evidence-based and contain robust facts and statistics
- Fit into our curriculum plan
- Are from credible sources
- Are compatible with effective teaching approaches
- Are sensitive to pupils' experiences and won't provoke distress

8. Use of external organisation and materials

We will make sure that any external agencies or organisations that are used to support our curriculum offer, and any materials used from external organisations and agencies are appropriate and in line with our legal duties around political impartiality. The school will use visitors to enhance teaching by an appropriate member of teaching staff, not to replace teaching by those staff.

We **will**:

Agree with the agency on how confidentiality will work in any lesson and that the visitor understands how safeguarding reports must be dealt with in line with the school's Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy.

Make appropriate checks and engage with external agencies to make sure that their approach to teaching about RSE is balanced, and it and the resources they intend to use:

- Are age-appropriate
- Are in line with pupils' developmental stage
- Comply with:
 - This policy
 - o The <u>Teachers' Standards</u>
 - The <u>Equality Act 2010</u>
 - The <u>Human Rights Act 1998</u>
 - The <u>Education Act 1996</u>

Only work with external agencies where we have full confidence in the agency, its approach and the resources it uses.

Make sure that any speakers and resources meet the intended outcome of the relevant part of the curriculum

Review any case study materials and look for feedback from other people the agency has worked with Be clear on:

- o What they're going to say
- o Their position on the issues to be discussed

Ask to see in advance any materials that the agency may use

Know the named individuals who will be there, and follow our usual safeguarding procedures for these people

Conduct a basic online search and address anything that may be of concern to us, or to parents and carers

Check the agency's protocol for taking pictures or using any personal data they might get from a session

Remind teachers that they can say "no" or, in extreme cases, stop a session

Make sure that the teacher is in the room during any sessions with external speakers

We **won't**, under any circumstances:

- Work with external agencies that take or promote extreme political positions
- Use materials produced by such agencies, even if the material itself is not extreme

9. Curriculum links

The school will seek opportunities to draw links between RSHE and other curriculum subjects wherever possible to enhance students' learning. RSHE will be linked to the following subjects:

- **Citizenship** students are provided with the knowledge, skills and understanding to help prepare them to play a full and active part in society, including an understanding of how laws are made and upheld and how to make sensible decisions.
- Science students are taught about the main external parts of the body and changes to the human body as it grows, including puberty.
- **ICT and computing** students are taught about how they can keep themselves safe online and the different risks that they may face online as they get older.
- **PE** students can develop competence to excel in a broad range of physical activities, are physically active for sustained periods of time, engage in competitive sport and lead healthy, active lives.
- **PSHE** students learn about respect and difference, values and characteristics of individuals.

10.Parents' right to withdraw from lessons

Parents have the right to withdraw their children from the non-statutory/non-science components of sex education within RSHE up to and until 3 terms before the child turns 16. After this point, if the child wishes to receive sex education rather than being withdrawn, the school will arrange this.

Requests for withdrawal should be put in writing and addressed to the headteacher.

A copy of withdrawal requests will be placed in the pupil's educational record. The headteacher will discuss the request with parents and take appropriate action.

Pupils who are withdrawn from RSHE will work in the RESET room during this time, and be provided with a reading book, if they have not brought their own, to read during this lesson.

For requests concerning the withdrawal of a student with SEND, the headteacher will take the students' specific needs into account when making their decision.

11.Equality and accessibility

The school will comply with the relevant requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and will ensure the curriculum does not discriminate against students because of their:

- Age
- Sex
- Race
- Disability
- Religion or belief
- Gender reassignment
- Pregnancy or maternity
- Marriage or civil partnership
- Sexual orientation

The school will consider the backgrounds, gender, age range and needs of its students and determine whether it is necessary to put in place additional support for students with the above protected characteristics.

The school will design the RSHE curriculum to be inclusive of all students. The school will be aware that some students are more vulnerable to exploitation, bullying and other issues due to their characteristics, e.g. SEND or being LGBTQ+. Teachers will understand that they may need to liaise with the SENDCo and be more explicit and adapt their planning or work to appropriately deliver the curriculum to students with SEND.

Where there is a need to tailor content and teaching to meet the needs of students at different developmental stages, the school will ensure the teaching remains sensitive, age-appropriate, developmentally appropriate and is delivered with reference to the law.

The school will take steps to foster healthy and respectful child-to-child communication and behaviour between all students, and provide an environment which challenges perceived limits on students based on their gender or any other characteristic.

The school will be actively aware of everyday issues such as sexism, misogyny, homophobia and gender stereotypes and take positive action to build a culture within which these are not tolerated. Any occurrences of such issues will be identified and managed promptly. Sexual violence and sexual harassment are not acceptable and will not be tolerated. Any reports of sexual violence or sexual harassment will be handled in accordance with the school's Child-on-Child Abuse Policy.

12.Safeguarding and confidentiality

All students will be taught about keeping themselves safe, including online, as part of a broad and balanced curriculum.

To meet DfE's best practice advice, the DSL will be involved in the formulation of safeguarding-related areas of the curriculum, as the knowledge and resources may help to address safeguarding issues more appropriately and effectively.

Confidentiality within the classroom will be an important component of RSHE, and teachers will be expected to respect the confidentiality of their students as far as possible.

Teachers will, however, understand that some aspects of RSHE may lead to a student raising a safeguarding concern, e.g. disclosing that they are being abused, and that if a disclosure is made, the DSL will be alerted immediately. Students will be made aware of how to raise their concerns or make a report, and how their report will be handled – this includes the process for when they have a concern about a peer.

13.Assessment

The school sets the same high expectations of the quality of students' work in RSHE as for other areas of the curriculum. A strong curriculum will build on knowledge students have previously acquired, including from other subjects, with regular feedback on their progress.

Lessons are planned to ensure students of differing abilities, including the most able, are suitably challenged. Teaching is assessed, identifying where students need extra support or intervention.

Students' knowledge and understanding is assessed through form tutors, and uses formative assessment methods such as discussion groups, case-studies and scenarios and quizzes, in order to monitor progress, and address misconceptions.

14.Staff training

Training will be provided by the RSHE subject leader to the relevant members of staff on a termly basis to ensure they are up-to-date with the RSHE curriculum. Training will also be scheduled around any updated guidance on the curriculum and any new developments, e.g. youth produced sexual imagery, which may need to be addressed in relation to the curriculum.

Appropriately trained staff will be able to give students information on where and how to obtain confidential advice, counselling and treatment, as well as guidance on emergency contraception and their effectiveness.

15. Monitoring and review

The RSHE subject leader will be responsible for monitoring the quality of teaching and learning for the subject.

This policy will be reviewed by the headteacher in conjunction with the RSHE subject leader on an annual basis.

Any changes needed to the policy, including changes to the programmes, will be implemented by the headteacher. Any changes to the policy will be clearly communicated to all members of staff and, where necessary, parents and students, involved in the RSHE curriculum.

The next scheduled review date for this policy will be the summer term 2024.